

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Purpose

This item clarifies and enhances NCCI's **Basic Manual for Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance (Basic Manual)** rules related to payroll inclusions and payroll exclusions.

Background

Compensation Plans

Employers are increasingly offering additional benefits to employees as part of their compensation plans. Examples of the compensation packages and programs offered include deferred wage agreements, restricted stock units, stock purchase plans, stock options, and other equity-based compensation plans. Carriers and premium audit groups have expressed concerns about the difficulty in determining payroll for employees who elect these benefits.

NCCI completed research and gathered valuable stakeholder feedback on treating payroll for employee-elected salary reductions to fund various compensation plans. Based on this research, additional rules are needed in the **Basic Manual** related to payroll inclusions and payroll exclusions. These additional rules will clarify how to treat payroll for these unique compensation plans and support consistent and uniform application of payroll.

Expense Allowances

A review was also completed to address concerns received from carriers related to expense allowances. In 2016, NCCI filed Item B-1433—Revisions to Basic Manual Rule 1—Classification Assignment and Rule 2—Premium Basis and Payroll Allocation to increase the maximum amount for expense reimbursements without verifiable receipts from \$30 to \$75 per day. Since the implementation of Item B-1433, NCCI received inquiries and requests for clarification. Based on the inquiries and requests received, NCCI recommends revisions to the **Basic Manual** rules related to payroll inclusions and payroll exclusions to clarify that:

- the employer's expense receipts must be verifiable, and
- allowable expenses must be paid in addition to, not in lieu of, wages earned by the employee, to exclude such expenses from payroll.

Additionally, all the rules related to the inclusion or exclusion of expense allowances were revised to ensure clarity and consistency between the rules.

Proposal

The following is a summary of the key changes proposed to NCCI's **Basic Manual** rules related to payroll inclusions and payroll exclusions:

1. Revise the payroll inclusions rules
 - Rules for including wages and salaries in payroll, to remove the reference to retroactive wages or salaries and add references to newly established rules related to retroactive wages or salaries
 - Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll, to update the content for consistency with NCCI's writing standards and add related references, and
 - Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll, to clarify that employer records must be verifiable and update the content for consistency between the rules.
2. Revise the payroll exclusion rule, Rules for excluding from the audit reimbursed expenses and flat expense allowances, to clarify that expense allowances must be paid in addition to, and not in lieu of, wages and update the content for

The enclosed materials are copyrighted materials of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"). The use of these materials may be governed by a separate contractual agreement between NCCI and its licensees such as an affiliation agreement between you and NCCI. Unless permitted by NCCI, you may not copy, create derivative works (by way of example, create or supplement your own works, databases, software, publications, manuals, or other materials), display, perform, or use the materials, in whole or in part, in any media. Such actions taken by you, or by your direction, may be in violation of federal copyright and other commercial laws. NCCI does not permit or acquiesce such use of its materials. In the event such use is contemplated or desired, please contact NCCI's Legal Department for permission.

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

consistency between the rules.

3. Eliminate the rule, Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements, to reduce redundancy and ensure consistency between the rules.
4. Establish a new rule, Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business, for clarity and consistency between the rules.
5. Establish additional payroll inclusion rules to address the treatment of
 - employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans
 - employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options
 - the value of equity-based compensation plans
 - deferred compensation payments to current employees
 - employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans, and
 - retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee.
6. Establish additional payroll exclusion rules to address the treatment of
 - deferred compensation payments to retired or terminated employees
 - employer contributions to stock purchase plans
 - employer contributions to the exercise of stock options
 - employer contributions to deferred compensation plans
 - the difference earned from purchasing discounted stocks
 - the market value of equity-based compensation plans, and
 - retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee.

Impact

Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

An employer may see an increase or decrease in premium dependent on whether the payroll inclusion or payroll exclusion rules being implemented and/or clarified are different from how the policy is currently being written.

While the overall statewide impact is not available at this time, the updated rules could have offsetting impacts due to the addition of payroll inclusions and payroll exclusions.

Expense Allowances

An employer may see an increase in premium if the employer's payroll increases because of the expense allowance revisions.

Statewide premium impact is not quantifiable but is expected to be negligible.

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit Comments and Implementation Summary

Exhibit	Exhibit Comments	Implementation Summary
	Multistate Exhibits	
1	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for including wages and salaries in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R5CC5), in NCCI's Basic Manual . <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibit for MT 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> In all states where applicable, except Hawaii, this item is to become effective for new and renewal policies with effective dates on and after 12:01 a.m. on January 1, 2024. In Hawaii, the effective date will be determined upon regulatory approval of the individual carrier's election to adopt this change.
2	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R6090), in NCCI's Basic Manual . <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibit for OK 	
3	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B), in NCCI's Basic Manual . <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AK, AL, AR, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibits for AZ, MS, MT, TX 	
4	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for excluding from the audit reimbursed expenses and flat expense allowances (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RB65F), in NCCI's Basic Manual . <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibits for AK 	
5	Details the elimination of the rule, Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-R168D), in NCCI's Basic Manual . <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibits for OR 	

The enclosed materials are copyrighted materials of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"). The use of these materials may be governed by a separate contractual agreement between NCCI and its licensees such as an affiliation agreement between you and NCCI. Unless permitted by NCCI, you may not copy, create derivative works (by way of example, create or supplement your own works, databases, software, publications, manuals, or other materials), display, perform, or use the materials, in whole or in part, in any media. Such actions taken by you, or by your direction, may be in violation of federal copyright and other commercial laws. NCCI does not permit or acquiesce such use of its materials. In the event such use is contemplated or desired, please contact NCCI's Legal Department for permission.

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit	Exhibit Comments	Implementation Summary
6	<p>Details the establishment of the rule, Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-AAC0F), in NCCI's Basic Manual.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, UT, VA, VT, WV Refer to state exhibits for MS, TX 	
7	<p>Details the establishment of the following payroll inclusion rules in NCCI's Basic Manual:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA0E4) Rules for including employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA932) Rules for including the value of equity-based compensation plans in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-TCF8E) Rules for including deferred compensation payments to current employees in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-DA240) Rules for including employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA9A2) Rules for including retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RFD81) Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV 	
8	<p>Details the establishment of the following payroll exclusion rules in NCCI's Basic Manual:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Rules for excluding from payroll deferred compensation payments to retired or terminated employees (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-DA049) Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to stock purchase plans (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EAC0A) 	

The enclosed materials are copyrighted materials of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"). The use of these materials may be governed by a separate contractual agreement between NCCI and its licensees such as an affiliation agreement between you and NCCI. Unless permitted by NCCI, you may not copy, create derivative works (by way of example, create or supplement your own works, databases, software, publications, manuals, or other materials), display, perform, or use the materials, in whole or in part, in any media. Such actions taken by you, or by your direction, may be in violation of federal copyright and other commercial laws. NCCI does not permit or acquiesce such use of its materials. In the event such use is contemplated or desired, please contact NCCI's Legal Department for permission.

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit	Exhibit Comments	Implementation Summary
	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EA604) Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to deferred compensation plans (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EEBCD) Rules for excluding from payroll the difference earned from purchasing discounted stocks (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-TA0CB) Rules for excluding from payroll the market value of equity-based compensation plans (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-TA091) Rules for excluding from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RA72E) Applies in AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH, NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV 	
	State Exhibits	
9	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for excluding from the audit reimbursed expenses and flat expense allowances (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RB65F), in NCCI's Basic Manual for Alaska.	This item is to become effective for new and renewal policies with effective dates on and after 12:01 a.m. on January 1, 2024.
9	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B), in NCCI's Basic Manual for Arizona.	
9	Details the revisions to the following rules in NCCI's Basic Manual for Montana: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Rules for including wages and salaries in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R5CC5), and Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B). 	
9	Details the revisions and establishment of the following rules in NCCI's Basic Manual for Mississippi: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B), and Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-AAC0F). 	
9	Details the revisions to the rule, Rules for including	

The enclosed materials are copyrighted materials of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"). The use of these materials may be governed by a separate contractual agreement between NCCI and its licensees such as an affiliation agreement between you and NCCI. Unless permitted by NCCI, you may not copy, create derivative works (by way of example, create or supplement your own works, databases, software, publications, manuals, or other materials), display, perform, or use the materials, in whole or in part, in any media. Such actions taken by you, or by your direction, may be in violation of federal copyright and other commercial laws. NCCI does not permit or acquiesce such use of its materials. In the event such use is contemplated or desired, please contact NCCI's Legal Department for permission.

Filing Memorandum

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit	Exhibit Comments	Implementation Summary
	employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R6090), in NCCI's Basic Manual for Oklahoma.	
9	Details the elimination of the rule, Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-R168D), in NCCI's Basic Manual for Oregon.	
9	Details the revisions and establishment of the following rules in NCCI's Basic Manual for Texas: <ul style="list-style-type: none">Rules for including expense reimbursements in payroll (Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B), andRules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business (Rule ID: BM-PAYE-AAC0F).	

The enclosed materials are copyrighted materials of the National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. ("NCCI"). The use of these materials may be governed by a separate contractual agreement between NCCI and its licensees such as an affiliation agreement between you and NCCI. Unless permitted by NCCI, you may not copy, create derivative works (by way of example, create or supplement your own works, databases, software, publications, manuals, or other materials), display, perform, or use the materials, in whole or in part, in any media. Such actions taken by you, or by your direction, may be in violation of federal copyright and other commercial laws. NCCI does not permit or acquiesce such use of its materials. In the event such use is contemplated or desired, please contact NCCI's Legal Department for permission.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 1

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL,
IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for including wages and salaries in payroll

Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R5CC5

Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024

Include current wages or salaries, ~~and retroactive wages or salaries,~~ paid during the current policy period in payroll.

References

Refer to

- [Rules for including retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee in payroll, and](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 2**Basic Manual—Effective 2021**

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL,
IN, KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R6090***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include payments for employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll.

Employee-authorized reductions from gross pay

Examples of payments Payments for employee-authorized reductions from gross pay include are as follows:

- salary reductions
- health savings accounts (HSAs)
- flexible spending accounts (FSAs)
- employee savings plans
- retirement plans, ~~or~~ and
- cafeteria plans, including IRC 125 plans.

ReferencesRefer to

- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll](#)
- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans in payroll](#), and
- [NCCI's *Basic Manual User's Guide* for an example of cafeteria plans.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 3

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for including nonverified expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances in payroll

Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B

Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024

Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees in payroll ~~when~~ if the employer's verifiable records do not ~~verify~~ confirm that the employee expense or allowance was incurred as a valid business expense.

Rule for reasonable expense allowance exclusions

~~Exclude a reasonable expense allowance of up to \$75 per day from payroll if it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer, but the employer did not maintain verifiable receipts for incurred expenses. Include the remaining nonverifiable expenses in payroll.~~

References

Refer to Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business expense reimbursements for information about contractual allowable travel expenses and expense reimbursement exclusions.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 4

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for excluding from the audit payroll verified expense reimbursements reimbursed expenses and flat expense allowances

Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RB65F

Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024

Exclude from the audit payroll reimbursement expenses expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees only when all of these following conditions are met:

- The employer's verifiable records confirm that the expenses or allowances are incurred as a valid for the business expense of the employer.
- The amount of each employee's expense or allowance is shown separately in the employer records.
- The amount of the expense or allowance approximates the actual expense incurred by the employee in the conduct of their work.
- The expense reimbursements and/or flat expense allowances paid to the employee must be in addition to, not in lieu of, the wages earned by the employee.

Maximum expense allowance for nonreceipted expenses

~~Exclude from payroll the maximum expense allowance when the employer does not have verifiable expense receipts for an employee who was away from home overnight on business for the employer.~~

References

~~Refer to Rules for including in payroll expense reimbursements for information about the reasonable expense allowance for nonreceipted expenses.~~

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 5

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

~~Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements~~

~~Rule ID: BM-PAYE-R168D~~

~~Effective Date: November 1, 2021~~

~~Exclude from payroll expense reimbursements to employees when the employer records confirm that the expense was incurred as a valid business expense.~~

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 6

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business

Rule ID: BM-PAYE-AAC0F

Effective Date: January 1, 2024

Exclude from payroll a maximum expense allowance of up to \$75 per day when

- it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer
- the employer did not maintain verifiable records for the employee's daily incurred business expenses, and
- the daily expense allowance paid to the employee is in addition to, not in lieu of, the wages earned by the employee.

Include the remaining nonverified daily business expenses in excess of \$75 per day in payroll.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll allowable travel expenses](#) for information about contractual allowable travel expenses.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 7**Basic Manual—Effective 2021**

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA0E4***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*

Include employee-authorized reductions from an employee's gross pay for purchasing stock options or qualified or nonqualified employee stock purchase plans (ESPP) in payroll. The salary reduction amounts are included in payroll for the policy year in effect when the salary reduction was made, even when the plan is a portion of a cafeteria plan.

ReferencesRefer to

- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll](#)
- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans in payroll, and](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to stock purchase plans.](#)

Rules for including employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA932***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*

Include employer contributions to an employee's cashless exercise of stock options in payroll.

Payment exceptions

Exclude from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options except for employer contributions to an employee's cashless exercise of stock options.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options.](#)

Rules for including the value of equity-based compensation plans in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-TCF8E***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*

Include the value of equity-based compensation plans, other than stock options and stock purchase plans, at the time of vesting in payroll. This applies when vesting is on a scheduled or annual basis, such as

- graded vesting
- scheduled cliff vesting
- performance goals vesting, and
- milestone anniversaries vesting.

Equity-based compensation plans other than stock options and stock purchase plans

Equity-based compensation plans, other than stock options and stock purchase plans, include

- stock transfers
- stock warrants
- restricted stock
- restricted stock units

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 7 (Cont'd)**Basic Manual—Effective 2021**

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

- phantom stock plans, and
- stock appreciation rights.

References**Refer to**

- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll](#)
- [Rules for including employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options in payroll](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to stock purchase plans](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options, and](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll the market value of equity-based compensation plans.](#)

Rules for including deferred compensation payments to current employees in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-DA240****Effective Date: January 1, 2024**

Include deferred compensation distribution payments made to current employees from an employer's contributions to previously deferred wages in payroll. This applies to amounts paid during the policy period.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll deferred compensation payments to retired or terminated employees.](#)

Rules for including employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-EA9A2****Effective Date: January 1, 2024**

Include the amount by which an employee's salary is reduced from gross pay to fund an employee-authorized deferred compensation plan in payroll. The salary reduction amounts are included in payroll for the policy year in effect when the salary reduction was made, even when the plan is a portion of a cafeteria plan.

Employee-authorized deferred compensation plans

Employee-authorized deferred compensation plans include

- pension plans
- equity-based compensation plans, and
- other deferral plans.

References**Refer to**

- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll](#)
- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll, and](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to stock purchase plans.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 7 (Cont'd)

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for including retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee in payroll

Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RFD81

Effective Date: January 1, 2024

Include in payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee when

- the payment is within the three-year audit period of the policy, and
- the employee was actively employed by the employer
 - at the time wages or salaries were paid, or
 - during any portion of the current policy period.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 8**Basic Manual—Effective 2021**

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for excluding from payroll deferred compensation payments to retired or terminated employees**Rule ID: BM-PAYE-DA049***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*Exclude from payroll deferred compensation payments to retired or terminated employees during the current policy period, when

- the employee is not employed at the time of the distribution, and
- records are maintained to separate these payments.

ReferencesRefer to [Rules for including deferred compensation payments to current employees in payroll.](#)**Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to stock purchase plans****Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EAC0A***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*Exclude from payroll employer contributions to qualified or nonqualified employee stock purchase plans.**References**Refer to [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll.](#)**Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options****Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EA604***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*Exclude from payroll employer contributions to the exercise of stock options except for employer contributions to an employee's cashless exercise of stock options.**Payment exceptions**Include employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options in payroll.**References**Refer to [Rules for including employer contributions to the cashless exercise of stock options in payroll.](#)**Rules for excluding from payroll employer contributions to deferred compensation plans****Rule ID: BM-PAYE-EEBCD***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*Exclude from payroll employer contributions to deferred compensation plans.**Rules for excluding from payroll the difference earned from purchasing discounted stocks****Rule ID: BM-PAYE-TA0CB***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*Exclude from payroll the difference between the market price of stock and any discounted price paid by the employee to purchase the stock.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 8 (Cont'd)

Basic Manual—Effective 2021

(Applies in: AK, AL, AR, AZ, CO, CT, DC, GA, HI, IA, ID, IL, IN,
KS, KY, LA, MD, ME, MO, MS, MT, NE, NH,
NM, NV, OK, OR, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VA, VT, WV)

Rules for excluding from payroll the market value of equity-based compensation plans

Rule ID: BM-PAYE-TA091

Effective Date: January 1, 2024

Exclude from payroll the market value of equity-based compensation plans. This applies when accelerated cliff vesting is triggered by

- an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of stock, or
- a change in majority ownership where the owner or owners before the change own less than one-half interest after the change.

References

Refer to [Rules for including the value of equity-based compensation plans in payroll.](#)

Rules for excluding from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee

Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RA72E

Effective Date: January 1, 2024

Exclude from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee when

- the payment is within the three-year audit period of the policy
- the employee was retired or terminated at the time wages or salaries were paid, and
- the employer maintains records that separate such payments.

References

Refer to [Rules for including retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee in payroll.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9**Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Alaska****Rules for excluding from the audit payroll verified expense reimbursements, reimbursed expenses and flat expense allowances****Rule ID: BM-PAYE-RB65F***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

~~Exclude from payroll expense reimbursements to employees if the employer's records confirm that the expense was incurred as a valid business expense.~~ Exclude from the audit reimbursed expenses payroll expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees only when all of these following conditions are met:

- The employer's verifiable records confirm that the expenses or allowances are incurred as a valid for the business expense of the employer.
- The amount of each employee's expense payments or allowances are shown separately in the employer records.
- The amount of the each employee's expense reimbursement or allowance is a fair estimate of approximates the actual expense incurred by the employee in the conduct of their work.
- The expense reimbursements and/or flat expense allowances paid to the employee must be in addition to, not in lieu of, the wages earned by the employee.

Hand tools and hand-held power tool expenses

~~Do not exclude from the audit.~~ Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees for hand tools and hand-held power tools ~~from the audit~~ in payroll.

~~Reasonable expense allowance for nonreceipted expenses~~

~~Exclude from payroll a reasonable expense allowance of up to \$75 per day, when it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business of the employer, but the employer did not maintain verifiable receipts for the incurred expenses.~~

References

Refer to NCCI's *Basic Manual User's Guide* for an example.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9**Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Arizona****Rules for including nonverified expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances in payroll****Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees in payroll when if the employer's verifiable records do not verify confirm that the employee expense or allowance was incurred as a valid business expense.

- Use records to approximate expenses incurred.
- Use receipts or other evidence of meals or other incidental expenses as records.
- Use documentation provided by the employer to confirm the number of miles traveled noted in records.
- Apply industry-wide allowances for generally accepted meal and incidental expense allowances to records.
- ~~• Exclude a reasonable expense allowance of up to \$75 per day if the auditor can verify the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer, but the employer did not maintain receipts for incurred expenses.~~

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements](#) for information about contractual allowable travel expenses and expense reimbursement exclusions.

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business](#).

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9**Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Mississippi****Rules for including nonverified expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances in payroll****Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees in payroll ~~when~~ if the employer's verifiable records do not ~~verify~~ confirm that the employee expense or allowance was incurred as a valid business expense.

~~Rule for reasonable expense allowance exclusions~~

~~Exclude a reasonable expense allowance up to the IRS allowable per diem amount from payroll if it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer, but the employer did not maintain verifiable receipts for incurred expenses.~~

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business expense reimbursements](#) for information about contractual allowable travel expenses and expense reimbursement exclusions.

Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business**Rule ID: BM-PAYE-XXXXX***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*

Exclude from payroll a maximum expense allowance of up to the IRS allowable amount per day when

- it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer
- the employer did not maintain verifiable records for the employee's daily incurred business expenses, and
- the daily expense allowance paid to the employee is in addition to, not in lieu of, the wages earned by the employee.

Include the remaining nonverified daily business expenses in excess of the IRS allowable amount per day in payroll.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll allowable travel expenses](#) for information about contractual allowable travel expenses.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9
Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Montana

Rules for including wages and salaries in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R5CC5***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include the following in payroll:

- current wages or salaries paid during the current policy period, and
- ~~retroactive wages or salaries, and~~
- tips or other gratuities received by an employee and reported to the employer for tax purposes.

ReferencesRefer to NCCI's ~~Basic Manual User's Guide~~ for an example

- [Rules for including retroactive wages or salaries paid to a current employee in payroll, and](#)
- [Rules for excluding from payroll retroactive wages or salaries paid to a retired or terminated employee.](#)

Rules for including nonverified expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances in payroll**Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees in payroll when if the employer's verifiable records do not confirm that the employee expense or allowance was incurred as a valid business expense.

References

Refer to [Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business expense reimbursements](#) for information about contractual allowable travel expenses and expense reimbursement exclusions.

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9**Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Oklahoma****Rules for including employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll****Rule ID: BM-PAYI-R6090***Effective Date: ~~November 1, 2021~~ January 1, 2024*

Include payments for employee-authorized reductions from gross pay in payroll.

Employee-authorized reductions from gross payrollExamples of payments Payments for employee-authorized reductions from gross pay include ~~are as follows:~~

- salary reductions
- health savings accounts (HSAs)
- flexible spending accounts (FSAs)
- retirement plans, ~~or~~ and
- cafeteria plans, including IRC 125 plans.

Exception for State Employees Flexible Benefits Act salary adjustment agreements

In accordance with 74 OK ST 1344(C), exclude from payroll the amount by which an employee's salary is adjusted pursuant to a salary-adjustment agreement for state employees participating in a flexible benefit plan under the State Employees Flexible Benefits Act.

References**Refer to**

- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions for purchasing stock options or stock purchase plans in payroll](#)
- [Rules for including employee-authorized reductions to fund deferred compensation plans in payroll, and](#)
- [NCCI's *Basic Manual User's Guide* for an example of cafeteria plans.](#)

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9
Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Oregon

~~Rules for excluding from payroll expense reimbursements~~

~~Rule ID: BM-PAYE-R168D~~

~~Effective Date: November 1, 2021~~

~~Exclude from payroll expense reimbursements to employees when the employer records substantiate that the expense was incurred as a valid business expense.~~

Item B-1448—Revisions to Basic Manual Rules Related to Payroll Inclusions and Payroll Exclusions

Exhibit 9
Basic Manual—Effective 2021—Texas**Rules for including nonverified expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances in payroll****Rule ID: BM-PAYI-RC30B***Effective Date: ~~April 1, 2022~~ January 1, 2024*

Include expense reimbursements and flat expense allowances paid to employees in payroll when if the employer's verifiable records do not ~~verify~~ confirm that the employee expense or allowance was incurred as a valid business expense.

Rule for reasonable expense allowance exclusions from payroll

~~Exclude a reasonable expense allowance up to the IRS allowable per diem amount from payroll if it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on the business of the employer, but the employer did not maintain verifiable receipts for incurred expenses. Include the remaining nonverifiable expenses as payroll.~~

References

Refer to Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business expense reimbursements for information about contractual allowable travel expenses and expense reimbursement exclusions.

Rules for excluding from payroll a maximum daily expense allowance for nonverified expenses incurred on overnight business**Rule ID: BM-PAYE-AAC0F***Effective Date: January 1, 2024*

Exclude from payroll a maximum expense allowance of up to the IRS allowable amount per day when

- it can be verified that the employee was away from home overnight on business for the employer
- the employer did not maintain verifiable records for the employee's daily incurred business expenses, and
- the daily expense allowance paid to the employee is in addition to, not in lieu of, the wages earned by the employee.

Include the remaining nonverified daily business expenses in excess of the IRS allowable amount per day in payroll.

References

Refer to Rules for excluding from payroll allowable travel expenses for information about contractual allowable travel expenses.